ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
February 6, 2002
8:03 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Con Bunde, Chair
Representative Brian Porter
Representative Peggy W son
Representative Gary Stevens
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representati ve G etchen Guess
VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Joe G een

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

WORK SESSI ON ON TEACHER SHORTAGE:

Servi ce Learning Report
Regi onal Training Centers Report

- HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO 211
"An Act requiring an annual inflation adjustnment of the base
student allocation used in the fornmula for state funding of
public education; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 211(EDU) QUT OF COW TTEE
WORK SESSI ON ON TEACHER SHORTAGE:

Rehiring RIP-Retired Teachers [what becane HB 416]

- HEARD
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 11
Proposing an anmendnent to the Uniform Rules of the Al aska State
Legislature relating to the Education Commttee, a standing

commttee of the |egislature.

- HEARD BUT NOT' SCHEDULED

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- February 6, 2002



DI SCUSSI ON OF POSSIBLE COWM TTEE BILL ON STUDENT SURVEYS [ what
becane HB 408]

- HEARD
REPORT ON EED AND THE ADM NI STRATI VE PROCEDURE ACT
- HEARD
WORK SESSI ON ON TEACHER SHORTAGE:
Health & Liability Insurance Costs Report
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT' HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 211

SHORT TI TLE: FOUNDATI ON FORMULA | NCREASE
SPONSOR(S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) GUESS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 26/ 01 0729 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 26/ 01 0729 (H EDU, HES, FIN

04/ 11/01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 11/01 (H Heard & Held -- Location
Change - -

04/ 11/ 01 (H) M NUTE( EDU)

04/ 25/ 01 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 06/ 02 (H) EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HCR 11

SHORT TI TLE: UNI FORM RULES: STANDI NG COMM TTEES
SPONSOR(S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) GUESS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 26/ 01 0728 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 26/ 01 0728 (H EDU, HES

03/ 26/ 01 0728 (H REFERRED TO EDU

01/ 16/ 02 1990 (H COSPONSOR('S): STEVENS

01/ 22/ 02 2034 (H COSPONSOR('S) : GREEN

W TNESS REG STER

WOODY W LSQON, Superi nt endent

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- February 6, 2002



Wangell Gty School D strict

P. 0. Box 2319

W angel |, Al aska 99929

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Reported on Wangell's service |earning
pr ogram

K. D. ROOPE, Student

Wangell City School District

P. O Box 2176

Wangel |, Al aska 99929

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the service learning report, briefed
menbers on her experience with service learning in the Wangell
School District.

CAROL KANE, Executive Director

Al aska Associ ati on of Secondary School Principals

P. O. Box 2889

Pal mer, Al aska 99645

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of rehiring RIP-
retired teachers.

MARK JONES, Uni Serve Director

Nat i onal Education Associ ation - Al aska ( NEA- Al aska)

1840 South Bragaw Street, Suite 100

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of rehiring RIP-retired
t eachers, i nf ornmed menber s of NEA- Al aska' s efforts in
establishing teacher nentoring prograns.

ELMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Departnent of Health and Social Services

P. O Box 110601

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0601

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the departnent's position on
consent for student surveys; recommended passive parental
consent .

LARRY W GET, Executive Director

Public Affairs

Anchorage School District (ASD)

P. 0. Box 196614

Anchor age, Al aska 99519-6614

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of student surveys,
expressed support for nodifying the current requirenents for
parental consent; reported that the ASD has had difficulty
obtai ning active parental consent.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- February 6, 2002



JEAN M SCHEL, Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Human Servi ces Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Departnent of Law

P. O Box 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0300

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Briefed nenbers on the Admnistrative
Procedure Act (APA) and how it applies to the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent.

BETH NORDLUND, Speci al Assi st ant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

801 West Tenth Street, Suite 200

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During report to the conmttee on the APA,
offered to obtain nore detailed information.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-4, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR CON BUNDE called the House Special Commttee on Education
neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Representati ves Bunde, Porter,
Wl son, Stevens, Joule, and QGuess were present at the call to
order.

WORK SESSI ON ON TEACHER SHORTAGE: Servi ce Learni ng Report

CHAI R BUNDE announced the first order of business would be the
Servi ce Learning Report.

Number 0130

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON reported that the Wangell School District
requires a service learning conponent for seniors and
participants in extracurricular activities.

CHAIR BUNDE indicated his concerns about vyouths' Ilack of
"attachment” to society. Service learning has helped to
establish an attachnent in sone areas of the country, he
of fered.

Nunmber 0255

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- February 6, 2002



WOODY W LSON, Superintendent, Wangell Gty School D strict,
reported on Wangell's service |learning program He stated that
service learning "draws a connection from the students to the
comunity, and [from the community to the school.”™ One of the
primary reasons Wangell has a service learning program is to
ensure that the comunity recognizes the work it does for the
st udents. The program also helps students recognize the
comunity's contribution to their lives, and it gives them a
chance to reciprocate. He referenced materials given to nenbers
outlining the three kinds of service learning in Wangell.

Nunmber 0343
MR WLSON said the first kind is the senior project required

for graduation. Each senior nust conplete a project that gives
sonmet hing back to the community. State standards are integrated

into these projects, he indicated. Public speaking and
presenting is one requirenent of the senior project that targets
a standard. He noted that presentations nust be electronic;

Power Poi nt and el ectronic video are just two exanples of the use
of technology in the senior project presentations.

MR. WLSON expl ained that the second type of service learning in
W angel | is the activity participation. Due to budget
constraints, the Wangell district does not pay for state travel
for students in extracurricular activities. Al travel expenses
are paid through fundraising in the conmunity. A student gives
back to the comunity by performng 16 hours of community
service for each activity in which he/she is involved. This is
in addition to the senior project, he added.

Nunber 0524

MR. WLSON pointed out that service learning is not provided
W t hout cost. Facilitation of the service |earning prograns
requires at |east one-eighth of a teacher's tinme and sonetines
in excess of one-fourth of a teacher's tinme, depending on the
nunber of students, he indicated.

Nunber 0574

CHAI R BUNDE inquired how nmuch one-eighth of a teacher costs in
W angel | .

MR. WLSON responded that wth benefits, the cost would be
$8, 000 to $12, 000.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- February 6, 2002



CHAIR BUNDE suggested that this figure could be wused to
extrapol ate costs for |arger schools.

MR WLSON noted that Wangell's service learning prograns
require a great deal of organization with recordkeeping and
over si ght.

Nunmber 0665

K.D. ROOPE, Student, Wangell Gty School District, reported on
her senior project. She explained that she worked with the swim
team coach after school several tines a week. She assisted wth
t he coaching of younger swi nmers. She observed that a student's
know edge and past experience often play a role in benefiting
the community through his/her senior project. She indicated her
presentation would include an "iMyvie" [using Apple Conputer
sof tware] about her work with sw mers.

Number 0730

CHAIR BUNDE asked if students experience difficulty finding
proj ects.

M5. ROOPE responded that some students are tenporarily "up in
the air" about project selection. She noted a |arge range of
activities for students to choose from Students have taught
phot ography and sign |anguage classes; assisted preschool and
el enentary teachers; and organized art festivals, pl ays,
nmusi cals, and westling tournanments. She indicated she didn't
know of any student unable to identify a project.

Nunber 0794

CHAIR BUNDE inquired if students chose projects such as cleaning
up parks or vandalized property.

M5. ROOPE replied that sonme students train for their energency
traum training (ETT) certification or becone j uni or
firefighters. Students have done recycling projects, she added.

Number 0838

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS comrended Ms. Roope for her presentation,
and expressed his appreciation for hearing from a student. He
asked her to identify the value she had received from her senior
proj ect.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- February 6, 2002



VS. ROOPE acknowl edged that students mght initially be
reluctant to do a senior project. She suggested that one val ue
of the project is the identifying of interests on the part of
the seniors. Students also receive satisfaction fromtheir work
on the projects.

Nunber 0927

CHAI R BUNDE asked whether many students felt frustrated or angry
about the requirenent.

M5. ROOPE responded, "W mght conplain a little bit, but I
really don't think there's anyone who would absolutely not do
it."

Number 0953

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE commented that the roles within a famly
have changed over the years, especially in outlying areas. The
i ntroduction of nodern anenities to villages has elimnated the
need for sonme inportant contributions by famly nenbers, he
expl ai ned; these roles gave famly nenbers a "sense of where
their place" was. He observed that nmuch idle tinme resulted from

t his change. He enphasi zed that when a neaningful role [for a
person] is found in the community, it adds value for the
i ndi vi dual . He commended the Wangell Gty School District for
its efforts. He surmised that this validation of students
through service learning prograns contributes to higher self-
est eem He expressed his wish for nore districts to do the

sane. He enphasized that an inportant issue is idle tine.

Nunmber 1065

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON commented that the community of Wangell
| ooks f orward to t he conmunity service proj ects and
presentations by the seniors.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that comunity support is a vital ingredient
in this type of program He congratul ated Ms. Roope for her
| eader shi p.

Number 1191

CHAI R BUNDE cl osed public testinony on service |earning.

Nunber 1232

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS observed that Wangell's service |earning
program offsets student travel costs. Al t hough the program
requires admnistration costs, it results in a savings to the
district. He noted that many districts mght be addressing the
cost of travel.

WORK SESSI ON ON TEACHER SHORTAGE: Regional Training Centers
Report

CHAI R BUNDE announced that the next order of business would be
t he Regi onal Training Centers Report.

Nunber 1362

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE t hanked Gaen Cornelius for researching this
t opi c. He described the current situation as including few
teachers, little opportunity to feel a part of the workforce

and a limted franme of reference for students. He said part of
this concept of regional learning centers is to utilize hub

comunities to give students a chance to address academ c issues
as well as career and job opportunities. Opportunities provided
by regional learning centers include the exposure to a different
environnment, the potential to earn college credit or vocationa
[certification], and the chance to gain experience as part of
t he wor kf or ce.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE suggested that using grades beyond grade 12
woul d assist sone students with a nore seanless transition to
post secondary educati on. It would also allow students who are
unable to pass the qualifying exam by grade 12 additional
opportunities to advance their education, ei ther through
certification through vocational education prograns or by
earning college credit.

Nunber 1472

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE highlighted what sone districts are
currently doing to address this issue. He pointed out that the
Chugach School District has won sone national awards and, in his
opi nion, has been a nodel for smaller schools. The Anchor age
House, run by the Chugach district, provides rural students wth
an opportunity to live short-termin the city and be responsible
for their own living by followng a budget. Students also have
educat i onal opportunities while in Anchorage, he stated.
Students as young as fifth grade begin by visiting Anchorage for
three days at a tinme; older students visit Anchorage to
participate in on-the-job nmentoring and other activities.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- February 6, 2002



Number 1560

CHAI R BUNDE added that participating in the Anchorage House is a
requi renent, especially for older students. They nust get
hands-on experience at jobs and be responsible for their own
room and board, he said.

Number 1590

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE added that parents are now being brought in
to be nore supportive of their children. This program is now
open to students in other districts as well. The Lower

Kuskokwi m School District (LKSD) has the Bethel Alternative
Boardi ng School (BABS) program it was begun in 1997 to neet the

needs of at-risk students. He said he visited the school
several years ago and net with staff and students, nany of whom
were from smaller villages. He pointed out that later in the

day he saw students working at jobs. The programis open to 35
students.

Nunmber 1663

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE di scussed a forthcom ng LKSD program Yuut
Elit Naur Diat, for grades 9-12, which is open to students in
the region, not just those in the school district. The district
foresees a 200-250 student capacity, he indicated. The program
is funded by a United States Departnent of Agriculture and
United States Departnent of the Interior grant; the governor's
budget proposes an allocation for this program he stated. Yuut
Elit Naur Diat is a consortium of 19 organizations to provide
vocational education in areas needed in the region including
heal t h, construction trades, technology, and education fields.
The programwi |l run year-round, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE stated that Project Education in Galena
boards 72 students from all over the state; it has been running
for five years and has a 97-percent return rate. The focus of
the program is postsecondary education and careers. The
district has gone beyond state funding and partnered w th other
entities such as the US. Ar Force, Suzuki, General Modtors,
Conmpaq, and Frontier Flying. Project Education has strict
policies on attendance and grade-point average. He al so noted
that students in the program who fail to pass any portion of the
exit examnust attend daily, after-school tutoring.

Number 1752

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JOULE referenced legislation sponsored by
Representative Richard Foster |ast year that addressed the

creation of a regional learning center. The Northwest Arctic
Bor ough School District is considering an expansion to grade 14,
he said. One concern with students comng in [from renote

villages] is the lack of housing. Students would be placed in
the community; a stipend for this housing is a matter that needs
to be addressed. He added that the vo-tech center and the
University of Al aska Fairbanks, College of Rural Al aska, Chukchi
Campus would be used to obtain credits and work toward
certification.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE expressed his interest in the interactive
TV provided in the Aleutians East Borough School D strict.
Students in renpte sites are able to participate in live classes
taught by instructors in a different location; this is 90-
percent funded by E-Rate nonies. He stated that this is a way
to utilize teacher expertise and deliver instruction to renote

students. He referenced a report by the Joint Legislative
Budget and Audit Commttee that indicates an increased interest
in additional boarding schools. These regional schools allow

for opportunities for instruction and enploynent in these hub
centers.

REPRESENTATIVE JOULE noted that job opportunities in the
villages are |imted. He expressed his opinion that sonme people
m ght be interested in job sharing in a hub community; this has

worked well in the oil and mning industries. "There may be
sonme innovative things that we can do in ternms of stinulating
the economies ... in those communities," he concl uded.

Nunmber 2002

CHAI R BUNDE recognized that Representative Joule had addressed
potential concern that a resurgence in boarding schools would be
a step back to "pre-Mlly Hootch" days. He noted that
Representative Joule had also addressed the issue of a "brain
drain" created in villages when people nove away to work.

Number 2040

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE agreed these are inportant issues. He
pointed out that the doctors in Kotzebue are not from the
region; these positions could be job-shared by |ocal residents
trained at a regional learning center run by nonprofits. "l
think the health boards would be tickled pink to ... be able to

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- February 6, 2002



hire people from their area, and allow them to come in on a
rotating schedule and job share,” he said. Hal f of a doctor's
salary goes a long way in a village, he added. Subsi di zed
housing in the hub community would help offset the cost of
living for job-sharing nedical workers, he said. He stated that
there are other questions that need to be answered.

Number 2133

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS enphasized the inportance of |[|earning
from the past regarding regional boarding schools. He agreed
boarding schools can give students sone advantages, but noted
that sone di sadvantages also exist. He offered that nuch of the
Native |leadership in the state had attended Mount Edgecunbe Hi gh
School . He wurged nenbers to identify what went wong wth

boar di ng schools in the past.
Nunber 2173

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE suggested the commttee's role mght be to
foster districts' plans for boarding schools, but not to dictate

that regional boarding schools be put in place. He said this
regional learning center concept is different from a boarding
school concept. He added that Native corporations would play a

central role in the regional boarding schools. He continued:

Aviation and ... the federal governnent, in many parts
of the state, [are] a major enployer. W' re
continuing to inport a lot of our workforce. And this
allows us the opportunity ... to show our students
what their opportunities are right there. ... | think
we'd be remiss not to afford sone of those districts
that are willing to take this kind of a step to do
that. ... W have to find a way to grow our own, and

we won't if people do not wunderstand that those
opportunities exist.

Number 2274

CHAI R BUNDE observed that this infornmation gives nenbers and the
public a good understanding of what is happening now and what
coul d happen. He agreed that the state should not try to inpose
boarding schools, but should facilitate ideas from the "bottom

up. "
Number 2296

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered that individual school district's
plans would spring from a specific need within the district.
Wangel |l 's service |earning program was devel oped out of a need

for extracurricular funding, she said. She stated that
districts are responding to the need for students who wish to
remain near hone to receive their education. Districts have

accounted for shortcomngs in the old boarding school nodel and
are shaping new prograns to transition students snoothly from
hone. She suggested the conmttee's role mght be to encourage
and allow for districts' developnment of plans, but not nandate
the formati on of boarding schools.

HB 211- FOUNDATI ON FORMULA | NCREASE

Nunmber 2386

CHAI R BUNDE announced the next order of business, HOUSE BILL NO
211, "An Act requiring an annual inflation adjustnment of the
base student allocation used in the formula for state funding of
public education; and providing for an effective date."

TAPE 02-4, SIDE B
Nunber 2400

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS, sponsor of HB 211, drew nenbers' attention
to Amendnent 1, noting that it sinply nmakes HB 211 current.
Amendment 1 reads [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, line 6, Delete [$3,940], Insert $4010
Page 1, line 10, Delete [1999], Insert 2000
Page 1, line 11, Delete [2001], Insert 2002

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to adopt Anmendnent 1. There being
no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS stated her intent to npbve HB 211 out of

commttee with nenbers' concurrence. She expressed her belief
that HB 211 is good education policy by inflation-proofing the
Foundati on Fornul a. She expressed her desire for the House

Finance Commttee to debate whether HB 211 is good fiscal
policy; she believes it is.

Number 2359

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON commented that she approves of HB 211.
She noted that per-pupil funding in Wangell has decreased in

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- February 6, 2002



the last 11 years, while inflation during that period was 35
percent.

Number 2301
CHAI R BUNDE asked for clarification on the inflation figure.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON responded that this figure resulted from
adding the state's annual inflation rate over those 11 years.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that school funding during the 1980s m ght
have been an excessive figure on which to base these
cal cul ati ons. He expressed his opinion that should the
| egi sl ature spend any additional noney this year, it should be
in education; he said, however, that he thought this noney had
al ready been spent.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE noved to report CSHB 211 [HB 211, as
anended] out of committee with individual reconmendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

CHAI R BUNDE obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives W1 son, Stevens,
Joul e, CGuess, and Porter voted to nove the bill from conmttee.
Representative Bunde voted against it. Therefore, CSHB 211( EDU)
was noved out of the House Special Committee on Education by a
vote of 5-1.

WORK SESSI ON ON TEACHER SHORTAGE: Rehiring RIP-Retired Teachers

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of what becane HB 416]
Nunber 2222

CHAI R BUNDE announced that the next order of business would be
the Rehiring of RIP-Retired Teachers.

Number 2167

CAROL KANE, Executive Director, Al aska Association of Secondary
School Principals, testified via teleconference in favor of the
rehiring weligibility for teachers who retired wunder the
Retirement Incentive Program (RIP). She said she thinks it is
inportant to include admnistrators in that eligibility. There
is a critical shortage of teachers, principals, and other school
per sonnel . This proposed inclusion would help districts neet

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- February 6, 2002



needs in special education, counseling, and adm nistration, she

stated; it mght also entice people into the profession
Rehired, experienced teachers and adm nistrators could serve as
mentors to those new to the field. She also noted that

districts would save noney on salaries and retirenent benefits.
Nunber 2129

M5. KANE said Alaska no longer has conpetitive teachers’
salaries when conpared to other states. O her states are
of fering signing bonuses, |iving expenses, and |oan advantages
to teachers and admnistrators; these states are taking away
sone of Alaska's best retirees, who could benefit Al aska. She
stated that Al aska has exenplary teachers and adm nistrators,
and she encouraged nenbers to help districts retain [these
enpl oyees] . She pointed out that principals would be visiting
Juneau and neeting with legislators on April 1 and 2; she
offered the principals' assistance to nenbers.

Nunber 2079

CHAI R BUNDE asked Ms. Kane how many teachers would have been
hired under this bill's provisions, had it already been in | aw.

M5. KANE responded that she didn't have specific nunbers, but
said it would have hel ped her human resources director in his
acqui sition of special education teachers and school counsel ors.

Number 2050

CHAIR BUNDE asked about current shortages in M. Kane's
district.

M5. KANE replied that she didn't have specific nunbers and
offered to provide themto the commttee |ater.

CHAIR BUNDE indicated these figures would be nade part of the
proposed bill's record. He offered that in nost cases,
districts have rehired just one or tw retired teachers.
Earlier coments suggested that this inclusion of R P-retired
teachers would not solve the entire problem but would provide an
additional tool, he concl uded.

Number 2010

MARK JONES, Uni Serve Director, National Education Association -
Al aska (NEA- Al aska), pointed out several problens pertaining to

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- February 6, 2002



education that are facing all states: How do we enhance the
quality of instruction? How do we attract and retain the best
and the brightest? How do we continually inprove the quality of
instruction in the classroonf He offered that he believes

mentoring is a tool that will address nost of the aforenentioned
i ssues. M. Jones noted that in order to appreciate this
poi nt, one needs to |ook at the teaching profession

historically. He said:

Hi storically, teaching is a very lonely and isolated
pr of essi on. It's one of the few professions that |
know of where a person cones out of school, is placed
into a confined classroomwith four walls and a door,
and is expected to take off and produce high-quality
out cones fromthe get-go.

Very few opportunities are built into the school
setting for teachers to interact wth each other, to
share ideas, to nurture each other, to |learn together

So, in the bigger picture, nentoring is part of the
creation, | believe, of a learning environment wthin
a school. It is the «creation of a collegial
envi r onnent with professional teachers  providing
tutoring, nentoring, and educational or instructiona

| eadership to their colleagues.

Number 1900

MR, JONES noted that he has been working to establish nentor
prograns throughout the state. Nat i onal Education Associ ati on-
Al aska has been concerned about new teachers comng into the
state and the correlated high turnover rate when these teachers
arrive ill prepared. Ket chi kan has a nentor program in place
t hat was established by NEA-Al aska about five years ago.

MR. JONES offered insight into nentoring based on NEA-Al aska's
experience. Mentoring is not a casual relationship or a "buddy"
system Sel ection of nentors nust be based on well-defined
criteria; these nentors nust receive a curriculum of study that
hel ps them understand adult-Ilearning processes; and both nentor
and protégé need tinme during the day to interact with each other
for denonstration, observation, exchange of ideas, and to
address probl ens and concerns.

VR. JONES referenced private-sector studies of ment ori ng

progranms that indicate confidentiality in the nentor-protégeée
relationship is critical. In several ad-hoc nentoring prograns

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- February 6, 2002



in the state, admnistrators are asking nentors for input for
the protégé' s evaluation, he noted. As a result, the trust has
deteriorated between the nmentor and protégé, so it 1is an
i neffective rel ati onshi p.

Nunber 1829

MR, JONES cited statistics from a study conducted by Marshall
Goldsmth, a well-known nentor trainer. I n conparison studies,
the progress of protégés in confidential nentor relationships is
35 percent greater than in nmentoring situations in which the
mentor is part of the evaluation process. He said NEA-Al aska is
i nterested in creating Al aska Nati ve par apr of essi ona
partnerships with teachers who are new to the comunity. He
told the commttee:

W believe that teachers comng from outside the state
into an Alaska Native village have no concept of what
they're dealing wth. Oten, by the tinme they have
di scovered what the cultural distinctions are, they
have nmade m stakes that have alienated them from the
comunity. They have becone ... dissatisfied because
they don't know how to interact with people
effectively, and, as a result, many of them |eave. W
believe that if we could effectively train and prepare
Al aska Native paraprofessionals to serve as nentors

) we would deal with the cultural conflicts that
occur when new teachers arrive in the state.

MR. JONES indicated NEA-Al aska's goal of organizing comunities

and bringing them into the nmentoring process. He concl uded by
stating that nentorship touches on the retention, educational
quality, and induction issues facing nenbers. He offered to

submt witten testinony pertaining to these issues.
Nunber 1707

CHAI R BUNDE asked M. Jones about NEA-Alaska's position on the
rehiring of RIP-retired teachers.

MR. JONES replied that NEA-Al aska is concerned about the use of
the retirenent system as a supplenentary conpensation program
for teachers. However, the organization is sensitive to the
shortage issues schools are facing in special education, speech
[therapy], occupational therapy, school psychology, and sone
hi gher-1evel math and science courses. He offered that bringing
back retirees as a short-term solution is a critical tool. He

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- February 6, 2002



enphasi zed that long-term solutions to these problens nust be
f ound.

Number 1645
REPRESENTATI VE PORTER asked M. Jones to elaborate on the
statistics presented regarding results of nentor prograns and

the inclusion of the nentor in the protégé' s eval uati on.

MR. JONES said he could provide nore information in witten

form In general, the success rates in the study were
determned by criteria defined by the enployer, the enployee,
and the nentor. For exanple, a protégé mght identify classroom

managenment as a primary concern and then specify particular
cl assroom managenent issues with which he/she has problens. The
mentoring partnership would systematically work at renedying
each specific problem He explained that in situations in which
the protégé knows confidentiality exists, he/she would be nore
forthcom ng with perceptions and weaknesses. According to these
studies, a 35 percent better success rate in neeting those
defi ned goal s exi sted in ment ori ng situations wher e
confidentiality existed than in situations where the nentor was
involved in the protégé's evaluation process. The definition of
success i s individualized in each nentoring situation.

Number 1530

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER asked for <clarification on the parties
setting the goals for inprovenent.

MR, JONES answered that the goals in nost of the studies were
set [collaboratively] by the nentor, the protégé, and the

enployer. In private-sector nentoring situations, the nentoring
program is generally established because certain performance
criteria are not being net. In education, he pointed out, NEA-

Al aska is advocating nentoring as a general course in the
i nducti on process.

Nunber 1433

CHAI R BUNDE cl osed public testinobny on the subject of rehiring
RIP-retired teachers. He requested direction from nenbers
regarding potential commttee-sponsored |egislation to repeal
the RIP prohibition. He recounted that the report from the
Division of Retirenment and Benefits is that such a bill would

have no negative actuarial inpact on the retirenent fund.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- February 6, 2002



Nunber 1421

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS offered that the commttee has studied
this subject quite carefully. He said [a bill to this end]
woul d provide an additional option to school districts. He
noted the uncertainty regarding how many teachers mght actually
be rehired under this proposed legislation, but said it would be
a value to districts. He suggested that the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Education should sponsor such a bill

CHAIR BUNDE asked if there was any objection. He noted that
there was no objection and that a commttee bill would be
drafted. [The |egislation under discussion |ater was introduced
as HB 416.]

HCR 11- UNI FORM RULES: STANDI NG COW TTEES

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of what becane HCR 23]
Nunber 1366

CHAI R BUNDE announced the next order of business to be HOUSE
CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 11, Proposing an anendnent to the
Uniform Rules of the Alaska State Legislature relating to the
Education Committee, a standing commttee of the |egislature.

Number 1326

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS, sponsor of HCR 11, noted that she was not
present for previous conmttee discussion on this subject. She
i ndi cated many conm ttee nenbers have communi cated to her their
interest in seeing this bill nove forward. She announced her
Wi llingness to reintroduce this as a conmmttee bill and offered
to do the work necessary.

CHAIR BUNDE noted his understanding that HCR 11 would require
adj ustnents [to becone a commttee resolution].

Number 1291

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS offered that she would seek direction from
nore seasoned nenbers. House Concurrent Resolution 11 has a
conpanion in the Senate [SCR 3]. She outlined two options: The
commttee could go forward with this resolution, see what the
Senate does, and perhaps anend it later; or the commttee could
anmend it now [to address the establishnent of a House Education

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- February 6, 2002



Standing Conmittee]. She said that she has not explored this
subject with the Senate; she noted her willingness to do so.

CHAI R BUNDE r equested nenbers' comments on the subject.
Nunber 1238

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER suggested that if the House w shed to
consider a standing education commttee for the House alone, a
resol uti on woul d be needed to establish a special commttee.

CHAIR BUNDE cl arified that it would be a standing conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER offered that he didn't have a preference
regarding [the education <committee's remaining a specia
commttee or becomng a standing commttee], but said it is a
wor t hwhi | e di scussi on.

Number 1180

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said her experience as a nenber of both
the House Special Commttee on Education (HEDU) and the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee (HHES)
is that both conmttees "have their hands full.” So many issues
exist that it is difficult to adequately address themall in one
committee. She pointed out that nost states separate education
and health and social services, as two conmttees.

CHAI R BUNDE concurred wth Representative WIlson. He noted that
as a fornmer chair of HHES, he'd received surprised responses
from legislators of other states upon their discovery that
[ Al aska's | egislature conbines education with health and socia
services].

Nunber 1124

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS echoed Representative WIlson's remarks in
response to Representative Porter's comment. She offered an
exanple. There was a good policy debate in HEDU on HB 211; the
resolution wll now nove to HHES for the sane policy debate
However, the debate now should be a fiscal policy issue. She
expressed concern that if HEDU remains a special conmmttee, the
policy debate wll <continue to be duplicated in HHES;, she

guesti oned whether this is the best thing for the House. Wth
two standing commttees, one group would focus on education and
the other on health and social services matters.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- February 6, 2002



Nunmber 1089

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS furni shed that nuch had already been said
that he had wanted to say. He noted that the three freshnen
menbers on HEDU mi ght not have the sane perspective as |onger-
serving nenbers. He conveyed his appreciation for the
establishment of the HEDU conmttee, where nenbers have been
able to concentrate on inportant issues. These issues are not
going away, he said, and education is a large portion of the
budget. The education issues would have been cunbersone in HHES
in conbination with health and social services issues. He
indicated his support for establishing a standing education
comittee.

CHAI R BUNDE requested that this be addressed as only a House
i ssue to be brought before HEDU for consideration.

Nunber 1020

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS inquired whether Chair Bunde preferred a
House commttee resolution or for her to resubmt this
resol uti on.

CHAIR BUNDE indicated his preference to create a resolution to
establish a standing education comittee in the House; the
Senate can do likewise if it deens it necessary.

Nunmber 0978

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER raised the question of whether the House
can establish a standing conmttee that requires a rule change
w thout affecting the Senate. He suggested this issue be
broached with Legislative Legal and Research Servi ces.

CHAI R BUNDE agreed with Representative Porter's suggestion. He
added that this proposed resolution mght be stronger as a
commttee resol ution.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS indicated her concurrence to make this a
conmmittee resol ution.

Nunber 0927
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON inquired about the commttee placenent of
earl y-devel opnent issues; she said she was not present for that

di scussi on. She offered her understanding that nost states put
it in a health and social services committee.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE PORTER offered that this adm nistration has given
the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED) a title
that includes early developnent; this may not always be the
case, however. He remarked, "I don't think we should probably
get that adventurous at this stage."

Number 0865

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS expressed her understanding that the
Uniform Rules specify the departnents; right now, early
devel opment is in wth education. I f that changes, then the

Uni form Rul es woul d change, she said. [The conmittee resolution
under di scussion was introduced |ater as HCR 23.]

DI SCUSSI ON OF PGOSSI BLE COW TTEE BI LL ON STUDENT SURVEYS

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of what becane HB 408]

CHAIR BUNDE turned attention to discussion of another possible
commttee bill, on student surveys. He explained that the
adm nistration had asked him to address this issue, so hed
chosen to bring it before the conmttee.

Nunmber 0802

ELVMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services, offered that the departnent is interested, for
a variety of reasons, in gathering reliable health data through
anonynous health surveys conducted in the schools. Such surveys
are a longstanding practice, he observed; the Youth R sk
Behavi or Survey is the "gold standard" anong these surveys.

MR. LI NDSTROM expl ained that several years ago |egislation was
passed to change the consent nmechanism from passive to active.
The passive consent requires parents to opt out if they do not

want their children to participate in the survey. Active
consent requires parents to choose to have their children
participate in the survey. He stated that this has proven
i npossible for school districts to garner a |level of
participation that provides for valid data. He pointed to
nati onwi de research regarding anonynous surveys; information

about this is in the conmttee packet.

Nunber 0712

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- February 6, 2002



MR.  LINDSTROM summarized that nost of the research concludes
that parents don't typically object to these surveys being
conducted. "Leakage" occurs between the tinme a child is given a
docunent in school and the time it should return to the school
In nost instances, parents do not object to these types of
surveys; parents who object can opt out.

MR.  LINDSTROM noted that the departnent is interested in
returning to the passive parental consent nechanism D stricts'
ability to apply for significant funding is what is at stake;
data fromthese surveys is used to bolster the need for funding.
He stated that the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent
(EED), the public health infrastructure, and other state
agencies have simlar uses for this data. He enphasized that
this is valuable information. The <current system is not
wor ki ng, and the departnment wi shes to return to a system that
does wor k.

Nunmber 0628

MR. LINDSTROM reported that he's had extensive conversations
with the sponsor of the legislation that changed the consent to
active; he said concern was expressed when the |egislation was
introduced that active parental consent would prove to be

probl emati c. M. Lindstrom offered that the sponsor had
assured the departnent at the tine that if it proved to be
probl ematic, he would be willing to revisit the issue. "He is a
man ... of his word and has indicated that he understands how

problematic it has been,” M. Lindstrom said. He noted that he
felt awkward, as a Departnment of Health and Social Services
representative, testifying before the House Special Conmmttee on
Educati on. This is a [proposed] bill that would affect
education statutes, he pointed out. It is an issue inportant to
bot h departnents.

Number 0554

CHAIR BUNDE rel ated his confidence in M. Lindstronis testinony.
He inquired, however, about a neno from the governor's chief of
staff which indicated, he said, that the Ofice of the CGovernor
is going to do what it can to make the governor |ook good and
the legislative mgjority | ook bad. He sought M. Lindstroms
assurance that this was not an attenpt to put the |egislative
majority "in a box."

MR. LI NDSTROM replied, "You have ny absolute guarantee on that,
M. Chairman, and | will be sitting here at this table speaking

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- February 6, 2002



for the admnistration in support of this [proposed] |egislation
every step of the way."

Nunmber 0509

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if this [proposed] |egislation would
give the option to school districts to choose passive or active
parental consent.

MR. LI NDSTROM noted his uncertainty regarding whether a bill had
yet been drafted.

CHAIR BUNDE confirmed that it had not yet been drafted. He
clarified that the question was how the system of passive
consent had worked before it was changed.

MR.  LINDSTROM offered his recollection that districts were
all owed to choose the consent nechanism He indicated that this
is the departnent's preference. He stated that he would be
surprised if many districts chose active consent because it is
extremely expensive.

Number 0430

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER recounted that the change from passive to
active consent included specific wording that would exclude
asking students what they had for breakfast, for exanple. He
asked for nore details on the | anguage.

MR. LI NDSTROM replied that there are a nunber of surveys, but
nost di scussion centered on the Youth Ri sk Behavior Survey that
surveys topics such as alcohol and drug use, sexual activity,
and other topics. He acknow edged that concerns about that were
under st andabl e. He enphasi zed that these are anonynbus surveys;
in no way are they ever attributable to any individual. A child
al ways has the ability to not answer a specific question or
sinply not take the survey.

Number 0337

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER asked whether the active consent |aw
automatically precluded Al aska's recei pt of federal grants.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that the lack of a valid, representative
sanple results in the survey's uselessness for the purpose of
suggesting to a granting agency that this is what the data
i ndi cates.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- February 6, 2002



CHAIR BUNDE offered his understanding that it was an issue of
t he nunber of students actually participating in the survey.

Nunmber 0264

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted the inportance of renenbering why
education exists. He characterized not knowing what s
happening with students as "flying blind"; changes in student
behavi or need to be nonitored. He said, "As long as ... it's
anonynous, it seenms like it is necessary that we have these

facts so we can help students, which is why we are spending so
much of our noney and our energy and our time in education. So,
| think it's a very appropriate thing for us to make this
change. "

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS stated, "I think we should do this. I
think not only is it inportant to have the data, it's inportant
for local control." She added that the state should not be

telling districts they nust do this one way or the other.

TAPE 02-5, SIDE A
Number 0001

LARRY WGET, Executive Director, Public Affairs, Anchorage
School District, testified via teleconference. He indicated
that the Anchorage School District School Board supports
nodi fying the requirenents for parental perm ssion for student

participation in surveys. He noted that it is difficult to
obtain [reliable] data from surveys and questionnaires with the
use of active parental consent. He pointed to the ASD s Safe

and Drug-Free School (SDFS) program that currently has seven
grants requiring survey data. During the fall of 1999, federal
auditors put the ASD s SDFS program on notice that is was
bordering on nonconpliance due to lack of current data. The
SDFS program |l ost three grants totaling $296,916. Qher grants
have not been applied for because the criteria indicated that
wi thout contenporary data, the application wuld not be
conpetitive.

Nunmber 0097

MR WGCET explained that the ASD has tried a nunber of
strategies to fulfill the requirements of the current statute.
The district's return rates on secondary school surveys are |ow
- from 5 to 30 percent. He indicated that the district had
spent a substantive anpbunt to gain perm ssion to survey students

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- February 6, 2002



with little success. He concluded that the inability for the
district to obtain the necessary data from anonynous surveys is
inpeding its ability to successfully conpete for federal grants.

CHAIR BUNDE requested that M. Waget submit his witten

testi nony. He nentioned that Bruce Johnson, Association of
Al aska School Boards, had distributed testinony pertaining to
this mtter. Chair Bunde closed public testinony and asked

menbers for input on pursuing this subject as a commttee bill
Number 0217

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON stated that she thinks this is very
inmportant, and [districts] should be given the option to choose
passi ve consent.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER noted that he would be asking, upon the
bill's hearing by the commttee, whether this is just an easier
way for this information to be obtained, although the school
districts mght have done a better job of informng parents.
This [proposed change] would enable both active parent
participation and the [requisite return rate for reliable] data.
He observed, "It would certainly be easy to say, 'Well, it's not
wor ki ng, because we sent Johnny home with a piece of paper and
it didn't conme back.' There's got to be ... a better way of
getting that active perm ssion.” He stated his desire to hear
about sone strategies that have been tried.

Nunmber 0316

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked if the permssion currently
required is blanket permssion [for the entire school year] or
is required for each survey adm nistered.

CHAI R BUNDE suggested that questions be reserved to the tinme of
the bill's hearing. [The legislation under discussion |ater was
i ntroduced as HB 408. ]

REPORT ON EED AND THE ADM NI STRATI VE PROCEDURE ACT

CHAI R BUNDE announced the final order of business, a report on
the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED) and the
Adm ni strative Procedure Act (APA).

CHAIR BUNDE explained that his office has received inquiries

about why the EED isn't under the APA. He pointed out the logic
of having a uniform way for citizens to appeal decisions by any

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -25- February 6, 2002



depart nent . He noted that Departnent of Law personnel were
present to give a | egal perspective on this matter.

Nunber 0440
JEAN M SCHEL, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Human  Servi ces
Section, Civil Division (Juneau), Departnent of Law, told

menbers she represents EED and was present to explain the APA's
applicability to EED prograns. She clarified that the APA does

apply to EED in part; it applies to sonme decisions the
department rmakes. She noted that this is fairly typical for
state agenci es. She referenced Appendix A of the Hearing

Oficer's Manual, provided to nenbers, which outlines the types
of agency decisions that are wunder the APA and those that
aren't; she said that is covered in the [APA] "applicability
section.”

Nunmber 0534

CHAI R BUNDE inquired whether "under APA" indicated the [agency]
was fully under the APA, and whether "not under APA" inplies the
agency is fully or partially not under the APA

M5. M SCHEL replied:

Unless there is a specific category of decision-

making, it is total ... for those decisions requiring
due process. Agencies make all kinds of decisions
that don't require due process proceedings. An

exanple of that from the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnment's perspective is special education
conpl ai nts.

M5. MSCHEL reported that [EED] does independent conplaint
investigation that is not a due process hearing, per se; it is
an independent investigation. Expert consultants are hired to
conduct these investigations; these experts reconmend corrective
actions, if any are required. She conpared this to [EED s]
over si ght, nondeci si on- maki ng rol e in speci al educat i on
identification and placenent. These decisions are nade at the
| ocal district |evel.

M5. MSCHEL drew attention to page A-2, wherein a schoo
district is not under the APA She said it would be a nmgjor
shift in policy to place l|local decisions under the APA She
added, "What HB 71 did last year was assign the appointnent
responsibilities for hearing officers for those due process

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 26- February 6, 2002



hearings to the state. But the decision itself is a |ocal
deci sion that's appeal ed under separate due process rules.”

Nunber 0679

M5. M SCHEL offered that those [separate] due process rules are
| argely dictated by federal rules. She stated that it is a
conpliance issue for accepting |arge amounts of federal funding.
It is inmportant to note, she said, that this Ilisting [in
Appendi x A] is sonmewhat inconplete; EED nust follow the APA for
t eacher certification and chil d-care facility | i censi ng
decisions. These fit well in the APA because the APA is geared

toward |icensing decisions, she added.

CHAI R BUNDE of fered his understanding that sonme functions of the
departnment are under APA, while others - specifically in the
speci al [education] arena - aren't.

M5. MSCHEL replied, "That's right." She added that in the
speci al education arena, there are tw types of procedures: one
involves a local decision, and one involves a departnent
reconmendat i on. She explained that there are nmany other
decisions that do not fall wunder the APA Those deci sions
i ncl ude school funding allocation decisions, capital inprovenent
project priority decisions, sone transportation [decisions], and
bid procedure [decisions]. Regul ations, however, set out the
bid procedures and the appeal rights. She added that another
exanple of a non-APA decision is the future waivers pertaining
to the H gh School G aduation Qualifying Exam (HSGQE) .

Nunmber 0833

M5. M SCHEL said one difficulty with putting the current |ist of
non- APA decisions in the APA columm relates to the |ack of

efficiency built into the APA process. She suggested nenbers
conpare the requirenments between special education due process
requi renents and APA requirenents. The special education due

process requirements are far nore restrictive, nore efficient,
and geared toward protecting parent and student rights; the
burden of proof is different, and parents have up to 12 nonths
to request a due process hearing on a school district decision

she expl ai ned.

M5. M SCHEL further explained that the Administrative Procedure
Act allows a party 15 days to appeal a final decision issued by
a state agency. Once a hearing is requested under the APA a
decision could take 6 nonths to a year. The special education

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -27- February 6, 2002



due process requirenents call for a decision to be made wthin
45 days from the date of the hearing request; it is a quick and
efficient system She added that it keeps the child in the
correct placenent or provides appropriate services in a tinelier
manner .

Nunber 0947

CHAI R BUNDE pointed out nenbers' understanding of the need for
the difference between special education and APA regul ations.
He suggested that nenbers broaden their questions.

Number 0954

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked for <clarification on the federa
regul ati ons' supersedi ng of state regul ati ons.

M5. M SCHEL indicated that [federal regulations supersede state
regul ations] only in the sense that a state's nonconpliance with
federal regulations risks the loss of federal funding. Al aska
has adopted both statutory and regul atory procedures consistent
with federal requirenments; these have been adopted by reference.
In fact, she offered, state law prevails in Al aska, but the |aw
has been structured to be consistent with federal rules.

Nunber 1017

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON observed that when parents contest [a
decision] involving a student, a resolution should be reached
before the school year is concluded. She asked Ms. M schel to
el aborate on this matter.

M5. M SCHEL explained that this matter is the reason for the
short tinelines in the special education arena. She offered
that another good exanple of the difference between the APA
procedures and the special education due process procedures is
that the latter have a "stay put" provision. This nmeans a
child s placenent may not change during the hearing proceedi ngs
except in very limted circunstances involving drugs, alcohol,

or weapons, she noted. Even in these limted circunstances,
there is a ten-day tine limt on renoving the child from the
school . She stated that the intent of the tinelines is to get

the student back to where he/she is supposed to be.

CHAIR BUNDE asked EED personnel to expound on the portions of
EED that do fall under the APA.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 28- February 6, 2002



Nunber 1107

BETH NORDLUND, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,

Department of Education and Early Devel opnent, indicated that
she was uncertain about this matter. She offered to research
this further and report to the commttee. She suggested that

Ms. Mschel, as EED s lawer, was quite famliar with [which
department decisions are under the APA requirenents].

CHAIR BUNDE observed that it would be of interest to the
commttee to know which [EED decisions] fall under the APA He
asked for a breakdown of which procedures currently fall under
the APA and which will do so in the future. He noted that this
woul d give the public an idea of the appeal s process.

M5. M SCHEL said she would be happy to do so. She clarified
t hat non- APA deci sions have a separate set of hearing procedures
that are either in statute or regulation. These procedures are
made known to an appel |l ant by the departnent, she concl uded.

ADJ OQURNVENT
Nunber 1201
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Education neeting was adjourned at 9:50
a. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -29- February 6, 2002



